
APPROVED 5-18-21  

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 1 of 6  
APRIL 20, 2021  

 MINUTES 

TOWN OF TOPSHAM 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING 

HELD VIA ZOOM FROM INDIVIDUAL RESIDENCES 

APRIL 20, 2021 – 7:00 P.M. 

_______________________________________________  

 

  

  

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Scott Libby 

        Ronald Bisson   

        Larry Brann  

        Dan Flaig 

        Bruce Van Note 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT:   

  

Don Spann, Joshua Spooner 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Assistant Town Planner, Andrew Deci. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  
 

Vice Chairman (VC) Scott Libby called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  The recording 

secretary took the roll call and noted that all members were present, except for Mr. Spann and 

Mr. Spooner, both of whom has been excused.  

 

 APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE APRIL 6,  2021 MEETING 

 

 Motion was made by Mr. Brann, seconded by Mr. Flaig, and it was unanimously 

 

  VOTED 

 To approve the minutes of the April 6, 2021 meeting as corrected.  (Correction:  Page 5, first 

line, change “Topsham Fair All” to “Topsham Fair Mall.”) 
 

 

B. OLD BUSINESS 

 

After receiving unanimous agreement from Board members, Chairman Libby changed the order 

of the original agenda items, in order to hear the associated cases together. 

 

C. PROJECT REVIEWS 

 

1. MALLETT WOODS, LLC HAS APPLIED FOR FINAL SUBDIVISION 

APPROVAL FOR PHASE 3A AND APPROVAL OF CONSTRUCTION 

DRAWINGS FOR PHASES 3A AND 3B, FOREST GLEN, TAX MAP U21, LOT 65 

(Continued from the April 6, 2001 Meeting.) 

 

 



APPROVED 5-18-21  

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 2 of 6  
APRIL 20, 2021  

 

Planner Deci began the discussion on this agenda item which had been tabled at the last meeting 

of the Board.  He said the revised plans submitted were reviewed and the project was ready to be 

approved for the 7-Lot Subdivision, Mallett Woods Phase 3A and construction plan approval for 

Mallett Woods Phases 3A and 3B – Forest Glen Lane.  Action on this item would approve the 7 

lots of Phase 3A for the recordation and approve the construction plans for both Phases (3A and 

3B).   When the applicant is ready to come back in for the approval of 3B, it will be exclusively 

for the plats instead of any sort of construction plan.  So, there is actually two documents.  One is 

the legal plat to be recorded at the registry that creates the lawful lots to be sold as well as the 

infrastructure development, site plan documents. 

 

Project Engineer Chris Belanger said he has a power point that he could show again if the Board 

wanted to see it, but Planner Deci explained the process well and Board members agreed they did 

not need to see the presentation a second time.  He added that he would be happy to answer any 

questions. 

 

Board member Flaig asked for a summary of the changes and things incorporated into the plan.  

Mr. Belanger talked about the turn-around, grading, and stormwater plan approved by Mr. Saucier, 

which will be treated by a pond. Stormwater will drain to a temporary outlet spreader area until it 

will be directed to the final pond.   

 

Board member Van Note thanked the team for finalizing the application and plan and coming back 

before the Board with it in complete form.  He asked about the performance guarantee and Mr. 

Deci said the applicants will likely use a shared bank account or an escrow account.  

 

After all questions from Board members were answered, VC Libby notices some attendees at the 

meeting.  He said this was not a public hearing but would allow for any comments or concerns. 

 

Speakers included: 

 

Amy Wallace, 6 Mallett Drive – Ms. Wallace said the pond is directly behind her property and 

she expressed concern regarding blasting.  She said trees on her property are in horrible shape and 

actually need to be taken down. She is concerned the blasting will cause them more damage.  Some 

of the trees have actually fallen on the abutter’s property. She said she has taken this up with Mr. 

Catlin.  Dan Catlin responded saying that some trees did fall down during storms this winter.  He 

said he walked the area with a forester and will do so again.  He said he would have any trees that 

are a threat cut down.  He noted that the blasting is at the end of the street and should not bother 

the remaining trees. 

 

Danielle Murray, 14 Mallett Drive – Said the trees that came down fell 6-inches from their 

bedroom window and also has concerns about the Pine trees.  Mr. Murray said a neighbor “Linda” 

from 12 Mallett Drive was with her and also is concerned about the trees. 

 



APPROVED 5-18-21  

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 3 of 6  
APRIL 20, 2021  

James Morris, 8 Mallett Drive – Expressed concern that some of the tree branches are ready to 

fall done.  Also asked if the big pile of rubble is going to be taken away.  Mr. Catlin responded 

that the rubble will be used during construction and may be grinded. 

 

After all comments had been heard, motion was made by Mr. Van Note, seconded by Mr. Bisson,  

and it was unanimously (of those present) 

 

  VOTED 
 

  Pursuant to Section 191 of the Topsham Code and Finding of Facts set forth in memo dated 

April 16, 2021 from Assistant Planner Andrew Deci, I hereby move to approve the Final 

Subdivision Plan Application of Mallet Woods, LLC for a 7-lot Residential Subdivision 

(Phase 3A) and the Construction Plans for Phases 3A and 3B located on Tax Map U21, Lot 

65, subject to the conditions identified in said memo dated April 16, 2021. 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARING -- DRILLING AND BLASTING ROCK SPECIALISTS, INC. 

HAS APPLIED FOR A BLASTING PERMIT AT 7 FOREST GLENN FOR THE 

REMOVAL OF 3,000 CUBIC YARDS, TAX MAP U21, LOT 65 

 

Planner Deci explained that a Blasting Permit is required for this project as the blasting exceeds 

the 300 cubic yard limit in Topsham’s Blasting Ordinance.  It was noted there will be some noise 

involved from the crushing taking place in addition to the blasting. Mr. Deci said he expected 

Nancy Bartlett from Drilling and Blasting Rock Specialists, Inc. was expected to be present to  

speak to the application, but she was not in attendance.  Mr. Deci said the application meets the 

standards in the ordinance. 

 

It was noted that the application highlights the roadway and other areas where blasting will be 

done.  Chris Belanger from Belanger Engineering said that most of the blasting will take place 

approximately 300 feet from Marilyn Way where there is quite a lot of ledge.  There is no ledge 

in the area of the pond so no blasting will be done in that area.  Mr. Catlin added that there will be 

no blasting for foundations.   

 

Board member Flaig said the application appears to be in order.  He said the pre-blast survey states 

250 feet radius, and asked if that is the minimum required in the ordinance.  Mr. Deci responded 

it was.  

 

Board member Brann noted wording that needed to be changed in the memo from Mr. Deci.  

Reference to “Highland Green” needs to be changed to “Mallett Woods.”  Mr. Deci said this has 

been corrected in the file.   

 

Board member Bisson asked to add one more thing under Finding of Facts, that if a crusher is used 

for the rocks, dust prevention needs to be added.  He suggested to run water through the system to 

control the dust.  

 

At this point, the Public Hearing was declared open.  Commenters included: 

 



APPROVED 5-18-21  

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 4 of 6  
APRIL 20, 2021  

James Morris – Mr. Morris said he works from home and would like to know when the blasting 

will occur.  Response was there are horns blown prior to the blasting, but Mr. Morris can call the 

Codes Office, Tom Lister, at the Town Office for the information. 

 

Danielle Murray, 14 Mallett Drive – Said she works for home and asked what time of day the 

blasting will occur.  Response was that the ordinance lists 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.  Blasting can 

occur Monday through Friday.  Mr. Catlin said he expects the blasting will take approximately 3 

days.  Ms. Murray asked if residents will be notified when the blasting is done.  Suggestion was 

made that the construction crew should spray paint a sign at the edge of the road to say it was done.   

 

With no further comments to be heard, the Public Hearing was declared closed. 

 

Motion was made by Mr. Van Note, seconded by Mr. Brann, and it was unanimously (of those 

present) 

 

 VOTED 

 Pursuant to the Blasting Ordinance Performance Standards of the Town of Topsham, Chapter 

85, and based upon the Findings of Facts set forth to the Planning Board from Assistant Planner 

Deci dated April 16, 2021, I hereby move that the Blasting Permit Application for Mallett 

Woods, Tax Map U21, Lot 65, Phase 3A be approved with the following Conditions of 

Approval:   

 

1. This approval is based on all submissions and information provided by the applicant at 

approval, whether referenced in any findings or conditions of approval. 

 

2. No deviations from the approval are permitted without prior approval from the Planning 

Board of Planning Office. 

 

3. All work shall be completed in accordance with Best Management Practices for Soil 

Erosion and Sediment Control. 

 

4. This approval is conditioned on the applicant receiving all necessary federal, state and local 

approvals.  

 

5. If a crusher is to be utilized, that dust control be employed using water. 

 

3. JM BEDFORD, LLC HAS APPLIED FOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL FOR A 1,996 S.F. 

RESTAURANT AT 51 TOPSHAM FAIR MALL ROAD, TAX MAP RO5B, LOT 9A1 

 

Curt Neufeld from Sitelines represented the applicant and reviewed the Site Plan Review 

Application. Supporting materials included in the Board package included an Applicant Form and 

Agent Authorization; Right, Title and Interest; List of Abutting Property Owners; Supporting 

Graphics; Site Photographs; Lighting Information and Specifications; Architecture and Site Plans. 

 

Mr. Neufeld said he attended a meeting with planning staff and at that time agreed to increase 

landscaping around the building.  He said the applicant’s Traffic Engineer suggested a change in 



APPROVED 5-18-21  

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 5 of 6  
APRIL 20, 2021  

the way the sidewalk crossing was placed and this was changed on the plans.  The new plan also 

narrowed the exit area.   

 

Mr. Neufeld said that Stu Kay, from the Sewer District, requested a slight change to the way the 

sewer was set and Mr. Kay’s suggestion is now shown on the plan.   

 

Regarding a waiver of the requirement to build a sidewalk along the frontage versus a fee in lieu 

of payment, the applicant has opted to go with the fee. The Board reviewed the changes to the 

traffic flow pattern with no comments.  The Board request posted signs guiding customers to where 

the entrance and exits are located to the drive thru.  It was noted that comments still have not been 

received from Traffic Engineer Tom Erico.   

 

There was a discussion regarding the traffic circulation with the parking stalls perpendicular to the 

Topsham Fair Mall Road near the right turn exit and suggestion was made to take out a couple 

more parking stalls and perhaps increase the landscaping.  Mr. Neufeld said he will discuss this 

with the traffic engineers.  There was a question as to the extent of planting where a gas line runs 

in front of the building.  Suggestion was made to put a “lawn” there and Planner Deci responded 

that a “lawn” is not adding landscaping to the greatest extent as in the ordinance.  Mr. Neufeld will 

discuss this with John Larson and the small area between the project and the Norway Savings 

Bank.  Suggestion was made to do something in the future.  Mr. Van Note asked the Board and 

applicant if they were familiar with the Business Partnership Initiative Program between 

Town/MDOT/Business Program.  

 

Mall owner, John Larson said he appreciated the conversation about seasonal plantings.  He said 

it is his intention to always have hanging planters during the summer months.  He said he just had 

this conversation with Roy Wallace this week.  He said for the time being, he will wait to see how 

it goes this year.  Mr. Wallace is concerned with the Christmas Tree sales this winter.  Jersey 

Mike’s probably won’t be ready to operate until October.  Mr. Larson said Sunset Farms and the 

Ice Cream Stand are a nice addition to the Mall and he wants to keep them safe.  The ice cream 

stand is likely to be moved to the parking space at the opposite side of Norway Savings Bank and 

this will free up the area where they are now located.  This will give more space for the flower 

business.   

 

With all comments having been heard, motion was made, seconded, and it was unanimously (of 

those present) 

 

  VOTED 

   To table this item. 

 

4. PUBLIC HEARING -- JM BEDFORD, LLC HAS APPLIED FOR A CONDITIONAL 

USE PERMIT FOR A 1,996 S.F. RESTAURANT AT 51 TOPSHAM FAIR MALL 

ROAD, TAX MAP 505B, LOT 9A1  

 

Planner Deci said Mr. Neufeld did a good job on explaining how the project meets the Conditional 

Use Standards. 



APPROVED 5-18-21  

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 6 of 6  
APRIL 20, 2021  

 

No questions were posed by Board members.   

 

The Public Hearing was declared open.  Only one individual asked to speak: 

 

John Larson – Mr. Larson said he was thrilled to be able to bring this before the Town.  He said, 

as long as he and his wife owned the mall, the Town was hopeful that at some point we could do 

something along the Topsham Fair Mall Road frontage as all one sees when driving by are parked 

cars.  I was not able to do anything as when we made the deal with Ruby Tuesday, they precluded 

me of being able to do anything along the front of the lot.  I lived with that restriction for 17 years.  

The restriction went with them.  I wanted something to come with a small building around 2,000 

s.f.  Jersey Mikes fits requirements to a “t”.  I am happy this is before you, as I can finally do 

something that the Town has been wanting for quite some time. 

 

 With no further comments to be heard, the Public Hearing was declared closed.   

 

Motion was made by Mr. Van Note, seconded by Mr. Bisson, and it was unanimously (of those 

present) 
 

  VOTED 
 

  Pursuant to Ordinance Section 225-67 and consistent with the proposed Finding of Facts 

set forth in letter from Sitelines dated April 15, 2021, I hereby move that the Conditional 

Use for a fast food restaurant meets the standards and is hereby approved. 

 

D. ADJOURN 

  

Motion was made, seconded, and it was unanimously (of those present) agreed to adjourn the 

meeting at 8:35 p.m. 

 

  

 

              Respectfully submitted,  

 

 

           Patty Williams, Recording Secretary    


